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April 10, 2014

The Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission

RE: Letter of Transmittal

The (iomprehensive Annual Financial Report of the New Jersey Meadowlands
Commission (“NJMC” or “Commission”) for the year ended December 31, 2013
is submitted herewith. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation,-including all disclosures, rests
with the NJMC. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is
accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present
fairly the NJMC’s financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with
the accounting principles, the NJMC is a component unit of the State of New
Jersey, and as such, is included in the State of New Jersey’s Annual Report. The
accompanying Management Discussion and Analysis provides detailed narrative
information on the financial statements provided in the Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report.
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Independent Audit

The certified independent public accounting firm of Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva
was retained by the Commission to perform an audit of the 2013 fiscal year in
accordance with auditing standards geﬁeraliy accepted in the United States and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. In June 1999, the GASB
adopted their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management
Discussion and Analysis for state and local governments, The Commission adopted
GASB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2001, including the Management Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). The MD&A is considered to be required supplemental data and
precedes the financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
the MDé&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The accounting firm of Ferraioli,
Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva reports directly to the audit committee of the Board of
Commissioners. An initial meeting prior to the start of the audit and a subsequent exit

_conference are held to discuss the results of the audit.

Profile of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commigsion

The NJMC, formerly known as the Hackensack Meadowlands Development
Cominission, was established within the Department of Community Affairs through an
Act of Legislation in 1968. The name was officially changed to the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission under Chapter 232, Laws of 2001. The Commission
operates with a seven-member Board of Commissioners and is given mandates of
environmental protection, solid waste management and economic development over a
30-square mile region in Northern New Jersey known as the Hackensack Meadowlands
District (HMD). The District is comprised of 10 towns in Bergen and 4 towns in
Hudson counties. The NJMC's executive director heads a staff of professional, technical

and operating personnel totaling 104 employees.



The NJMC holds monthly board meetings scheduled on the fourth Wednesday of cach
month. Action may be taken, and motions and resolutions adopted by the NJMC at
such meetings by the affirmative vote of at least four members of the Board. All
meetings held by the NJMC are in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act,

which requires, inter alia, that all meetings of public bodies be open to the public.

Accounting System and Budgetary Controls

The NJMC's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The Commission operates and reports the following major

governmental funds;

e General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

e The NJMC’s Environmental Center Fund includes revenues and expenditures
associated with the operation of the Comrnission’s Environmental Center.

o The NJMC Business Accelerator Fund includes the revenues and expenditures
associated with the operation of this facility. The operation was concluded
effective 10/1/2012, yet there were peripheral expenses through early 2013,

e Includes reporting of Fiduciary Funds where the NJMC acts as a trustee for the

benefit of those outside of government, which includes mitigation funds.

The Commission also reports using an Enterprise Fund for its solid waste landfill
operations. This fund includes revenues and expenditures associated with the
operation of the Commission’s landfills, as well as the closure and post-closure costs of

such landfills.



In an effort to ensure compliance with the Commission’s By-Laws and to safeguard its
assets, an internal control structure has been developed and implemented by

management.

The internal control areas include:

¢ authorization levels for expenditures of Commission’s funds;

o specific procedures to follow when initiating purchase requisitions, processing
purchase orders, receiving goods and paying for services; '

e separation of the accounts payable and receivable functions;

o solid waste revenue and scale house operations;

e bank reconciliation review;

e controls over deposits; and

e production of system-generated and manual checks.

The internal control structure also includes approved organization structures and

approved budgets for capital and operating expenditures.

The Commission has also set up standards for procurement in accordance with
applicable law. The standards include a threshold, over which the Board of
Commissioners must approve all transactions. The Commission is in compliance with
Executive Order No, 37 (2006) with respect to procurement and has amended its

procedures to ensure 100% compliance.

The Commission adopts an annual budget for its governmental operations. The solid
waste operations and tariff are regulated by the New Jersey Department of
Environmental Protection. Each year during the budget process, senior management,
along with the Board of Commissioners, reviews operations to identify cost savings

which when implemented will provide direct budget savings. This is an important step



since the Commission’s operations are entirely self-funded without any appropriations

from the State of New Jersey.

In calendar year 2013, the Commission continued to take steps to implement cost

savings and reduce the overall cost of its operations, including continuation of several

initiatives:

@

In 2010, the Commission was awarded $10 million, one of the largest federal
grants it has ever received, for the implementation of a Meadowlands Adaptive
Signal System for Traffic Reduction. In 2013, the Commission continued with the
installation of the system and anticipates its’ completion in 2014. In addition, the
NJMC has contracted with NJDOT to extend the range of the MASSTR Grant
along Routes 1 and 9 to improve the traffic flow during the rebuilding of the
Pulaski Skyway;

In cooperation with SunDurance Energy, LLC, construction of a 3- megawatt
solar facility was completed on the Commission’s 1A Landfill in Kearny.
Funding for this grid-connect project was provided by a federal stimulus grant
and the PSE&G Solar 4 All Program. The Commission now collects lease
revenues from PSE&G, which are reserved for future renewable energy projects;
The Commission’s shared equipment pool continues to enable towns to save tax
payer dollars by providing the District municipalities with a vac truck, portable
light tower and portable pump systems;

The Mecadowlands Environmental Research Institute continues to make
enhancements to its’ early warning flood-alert system, which provides timely
information 24/7 to emergency responders, through the addition of text message -
alerts. A tidegate monitoring system was also implemented. The Institute has
provided critical data to both local and regional authorities regarding the tidal

surge created by Superstorm Sandy;



o In addition, the Meadowlands Environmental Research.lnstitute was awarded an
EPA Grant in the amount of $234,998.00 to conduct a study titled: “Measurement
of the Tidal Wetland Impairments for Acquisition and Enhancement in the
Meadowlands.” The results of the study will help guide future wetland
enhancements and assist in better managing these natural resources in the
District;

o The Commission staff continued its efforts to reduce the cost of operations by
elimination of full-time positions through attrition, consolidations of job
functions, elimination of discretionary spending where possible, utilization of
successful grant funding applications and by keeping outside consulting costs at

a minimum,

If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information,

contact the Director of Finance’s office at 1 DeKorte Park Plaza, Lyndhurst, New Jersey.

M o

Malc a jij Karrow / k
Executiv 1rect01

E Rl

Edward H. Bulmer
Director of Finance and Chief Fiscal Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission (the Commission), (A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey), as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements m
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Sates of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by.the Comptroller General of the United States. Those-standards require that we plan and
perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.



The Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission
" Page2. . I

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of New Jersey Meadowlands Commission as of
December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to “our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

-10-



" 'The Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission
Page 3.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s basic financial statements. The
supplementary information listed in the table of contents and schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required
by NJ OMB 04-04 and the leiter of comments and recommendations section are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplemental information listed in the table of contents and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the schedule of expenditures of state financial
assistance as required by NJ OMB 04-04 are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplemental information listed in the table of contents, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required

by NJ OMB 04-04 are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

The letter of comments and recommendations section has not been subject to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 28,

9014 on our consideration of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s internal control over financial—

reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other maiters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of

-11-



The Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission
Page 4.

internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Registered Municipal Accountant
No. CR00413

Vm,\)ﬂ, (ol o, O

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

March 28, 2014

-12-



NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

This section of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s (NJMC) annual financial report represents our
discussion and analysis of the NJMC’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended December 31,
2013. Please read it in conjunction with the NJMC’s financial statements.

Financial Highlights

e The Commission’s governmental net position decreased by $5.4 million or 8% due primarily to the sale of
the Bethlehem Steel Property, In CY2012, the Commission’s net position decreased by $2.1 million or 3%
due primarily to decreased fee income and the utilization of reserves to fund the budget.

o The total revenues for governmental funds increased by 15% or $1.7 million due to proceeds from the sale
of the Bethlehem Steel Property. In CY2012, the total revenues for governmental funds had decreased by
26% or $4.1 million due to reduced grant funding.

o The total revenues for business type activities increased by $1.0 million to $26.7 million due to increased
volume at the Keegan Landfill in conjunction with an increased disposal rate. In CY2012, the total revenues
for business type activities had increased by $1.6 million to $25.7 million due to a July 1, 2012 increase in
tipping fees at Kecgan Landfill, increased lease revenues and a reduction in landfill liabilities.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The annual report consists of three parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds
of statements that present different views of the Commission:

e 'The first two statements are government wide financial statements that provide long-term and short-term
information about the Commission’s overall financial status.

o The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on the individual parts of the
Commission, reporting operations in more detail than the government wide statements.

¢ The governmental funds statements tell how the Commission services were financed in the short-term and
what remains for future spending.

o Proprictary funds statements offer short and long-term financial information about the solid waste
activities that are operated like a business.

e Fiduciary funds provide information about the financial relationships where the Commission acts as a
trustee for the benefit of those outside of the government.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary financial

information that sets forth comparisons of actual activity to the budgets of the General and Environmental Center
Funds.

13-



NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

Financial Summary

The Commission’s total net position decreased by $5.4 million in 2013, from $64.8 million to $59.4 million.
The Commission’s net position had decreased $2.1 million in 2012, from $66.9 million to $64.8 million. A comparative
condensed summary of the Commission’s statement of net position at December 31 is shown in Figure 1.

Figure 1
Condensed Summary of Net Position (Balance Sheets)

(in millions of dollars)

Dollar Percent
2013 2012 change Change
Governmental Activities: ‘
Current and other assets $ 15.5 16.9 (1.4) (8.3)%
Capital assets 333 40.6 {(7.3) (18.0)%
Total assets $ 48.8 57.5 (8.7 (15.1)%
Other liabilities 9.3 11.0 (1.7) (15.5)%
Total liabilities $ 9.3 11.0 : (1.7) (15.5)%
Invested in capital assets, net 333 40.6 7.3 (18.0)%
Restricted 7.7 7.6 0.1 1.3%
Unrestricted (1.5) (1.7) 02 (11.8)%
Total net position $ 39.5 46.5 (7.0) {(15.1)%
Business type activities:
Current and other assets $ 24.5 24.4 0.1 0.4%
Capital assets 1.2 1.7 (0.5) (29.4)%
Total assets $ 25.7 26.1 (0.4) (1.5)%
Other liabilities 5.8 7.8 (2.0) (25.6)%
Total liabilities $ 5.8 7.8 2.0) (25.6)%
Invested in capital assets, net 1.2 1.7 0.5) (29.4%%
Restricted 15.4 13.7 1.7 12.4%
Unrestricted 33 2.9 0.4 13.8%
Total net position $ 19.9 18.3 1.6 8.7%

-14-



NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

Revenue Highlights

While the Balance Sheet shows the change in the financial position of net assets, the Statements of Revenues,
Expenses and Net position indicates the nature and source of these changes. The NJIMC solid waste facility
averaged approximately 1,381 tons per day in CY2013 compared to 1,162 tons per day in CY2012.

Fignre 2
Condensed Summary of Statement of Activities

(in millions of dollars)

Doliar Percent -
2013 2012 change change
Governmental activitics
Program revenue $ 3.8 4.8 (1.0) (20.8)%
General revenues
and transfers 9.4 6.7 2.7 40.3%
Total revenues $ 13.2 11.5 1.7 14.8%
Commission operations $ 17.8 10.7 ) 7.1 66.4%
Environmental Center 2.4 1.9 0.5 26.3%
MAGNET funds 0.0 0.2 0.2) (100.0)%
Business Accelerator 0.0 0.4 {0.4) (100.0)%%
Other Governmental Funds 0.1 0.6 (0.5 (83.3)%
Miscellaneous 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0%
Total expenses $ 20.3 13.8 6.5 47.1%
Change in net position $ (7.0) (2.3) 4.7 (204.3)%
Beginning net position 46.5 48.8 2.3) 4.
Ending net position $ 39.5 46.5 (7.0) (15.1)%
Business type activities
Program revenue h 253 20.8 4.5 21.6%
General revenues . ,
and transfers 1.5 5.0 (3.5) (70.0)%
Total revenues $ 26.8 25.8 1.0 3.9%
Solid Waste 252 25.7 (0.5) (1.9%
Keegan Landfill Remediation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0%
Total expenses $ 25.2 25.7 (0.5) (1.9)%
Change in net position $ 1.6 0.1 1.5 1,500.0%
Beginning net position 18.3 18.1 0.2 1.1%
Ending net position $ 19.9 18.2 1.7 9.3%

-15-



NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

Budgetaxy Highlights

As required by its By Laws, the NJMC adopts an Operating and Capital Budget for its governmental operations
prior to the start of its fiscal year. This budget remains in effect the entire year and can be revised by the NJMC
Board of Commissioners during the fiscal year.

The NJMC solid waste operations are regulated as a utility by the Department of Environmental Protection and
operate under a maximum permissible tariff inclusive of Host Community Payments and solid waste taxes. On
July 1, 2013 the disposal rate was increased from $52.00 to $ $55.00 per ton inclusive of taxes and host
community fees.

The following graphs show the breakdown of the NIMC governmental fund budgets.

GENERAL OPERATIONS
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

ENVIRONMENT CENTER OPERATIONS
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Meadowlands Area Grants for Natural and Economic Transformation (MAGNET)

In calendar year 2005, the NIMC launched the MAGNET Program. The intention of the MAGNET is to set aside
funds to be used for tax relief incentives for District municipalities. A detailed budget outlining the amounts
appropriated for MAP, environmental, economic development and improvement initiatives is currently in place.
As of December 31, 2013, the balance in the MAGNET fund was $2.4 million. There were commitments of $1.8
million outstanding as of the end of the year.

Properties Sold and Available for Resale
In 2013, the NJMC completed the sale of the Bethlehem Steel site located in North Arlington for $7.5 million.

The NIMC, in 2014, intends to place properties located in North Arlington, Lyndhurst and Rutherford for sale on
the market via an advertised RFP that is currently being developed by the Attorney General’s Office.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Management Discussion and Analysis
" "December 31, 2013

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

At the end of 2013, the Commission had invested $65.4 million in a broad range of capital assets, including open
space acquisition, land, solid waste facilities, its headquarters, and in equipment as shown in the following table:

Capital Assets

(in millions of dollars)

Dollar Percent
2013 2012 change change
NIMC/Environment center
Building $ 16.4 16.4 0.0 0.0%
Land 19.1 283 (9.2) (32.5%
Infrastructure 1.1 1.1 0.0 0.0%
Construction in Progress 53 2.7 2.6 96.3%
Equipment 3.7 3.7 0.0 0.0%
Total $ 45.6 52.2 (6.6) (12.6)%
Solid waste facilities
Building $ 11.4 11.4 0.0 0.0%
Land 5.9 5.9 0.0 0.0%
Equipment 2.5 2.4 0.1 4.2%
Total $ 19.8 19.7 0.1 0.5%

‘Long-Term Debt
As of December 31, 2013, the NJMC did not have any outstanding debt.

Economic Factors

For calendar year 2014, the Commission does not expect a significant change in operating requirements, and the
tonnage received at its solid waste facility is expected to stabilize.

Contacting Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide citizens, people served by the Commission, vendors, and creditors
with a general overview of the NIMC’s finances. If you have any questions about this repost or need additional
financial information, contact the Director of Finance‘s office at 1 DeKorte Park Plaza, Lyndhurst, New Jersey.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

" ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Tovestments
Receivables, net:
Accounts
Other-
" Interfund
Internal Balances
Capital Assets, net
Restricied assets:
Cash management fumd
" Inferest receivable
Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
 Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to fiduciary funds
Noncurrent Habilities:
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

" NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for:
Closure and post-closure
Open space acquisition
Facilities maintenance
Capital additions and replacements
Insurance
Keegan landfill remediaiton
Flood Control
Student Transportation
Super Storm Sandy Repairs
Renewable Energy
Project commitments
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total net position

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Statement of Net Position

December 31,2013
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Fotal
10,821,860 3,083,088 13,904,948
7,091,323 12,266,586 19,357,909
930,729 930,729
128,466 : 128,466
355,943 - 355,943
(2,857,399) 2,857,399 -
33,240,765 1,234,110 34,474,875
3,062,659 3,062,659
6,024 6,024
2,272,891 2,272 891
48,780,958 25,713,486 74,494 444
36,718 323,191 360,509
899485 $99,509 1,798,994
1,075,499 1,075,499
194,400 8,342 202,742
8,198,963 3,452,930 11,651,893
9,329 566 5,_’;’60,071 15,089,637
33,240,765 1,234,110 34,474 875
6,793,144 6,793,144
46,000 46,000
2,388,855 2,388,855
781,074 781,074
25,000 1,035,000 1,060,000
5,122,546 5,122,546
1,724,618 1,724,618
32,486 32,486
142,175 142,175
280,799 2,451,612 2,732,411
2,326,906 2,326,906
(1,537,286) 3,317,003 1,779,717
39,451,392 19,953,415 59,404,807
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Charges for Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities:
Commission operations 17,763,649 1,573,982 {16,189,667) (16,189,667)
Environmental center 2,357,224 2,263,478 (93,746) (93,746)
MAGNET fund 19,962 (19,962) (19,962}
Other Government funds 111,886 (L11,886) (111,886)
Total governmental activitics 20,252,721 3,837,460 (16,415,261 - (16,415,261)
Business-type activities:
Solid waste 25,152,343 25,345,650 193,307 193,307
Total business-type activities 25152343 25,345,650 - 193,307 193,307
Total primary government 45,405,064 29,183,110 {16,415.261) 193,307 (16,221 954)
General revenues:
Investment earnings 82,834 307,464 390,348
Proerty Sales 7,380,000 7,380,000
Grants 35,040 35,040
Beneficial reuse materials 1,066,910 1,066,910
Keegan Landfill recreation escrow 85,485 85,485
Rental of composting site 300,000 300,000
Rental income - solar 174,144 174,144
Misceltaneous 1,449 591 1,449,551
Total general revenues 9,421,659 1,459,859 10,881,518
Change in Net Position (6,993,602) 1,653,166 (5,340,436)
Net Position—beginning 46,444,994 18,300,249 64,745,243
Net Position—ending 39,451,392 19,953,415 59,404,807

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaleats
Investments
Receivables, net:
Other
Due from other funds

Total assets

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

LYABTLITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Phe to other funds

‘Fotal Tiabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Mainterance
Additions and replacements
Student transportation
Open space acquisition
Super Storm Sandy Repair
Insurance
Flood Control
Renewable Energy
Comrmitted to:
Project Commitments
Assigaed to:
Environmental Center
MAGNET Funds’
Other Reserves
Unassigned

Total Fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2083
Environmental Other Total
General Center MAGNET Goverzmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
7,149,552 772,847 2,435,632 443 829 10,821,860
7,091,323 7091323
117,868 13,598 128 466
966,391 921,679 1,888,070
15,325,134 1,694,526 2,466,230 443,839 19,929,719
29,247 4,908 2,563 36,718
466,328 429,157 4,000 899,485
3955284 556,722 71,920 4,583,926
4,450,859 990,787 2,563 75,920 5,520,129
2,370,298 18,564 2,388,855
701,983 79,091 781,074
32,486 32486
46,000 46,000
142,175 142,175
25,000 25,000
1,724,618 1,724,618
280,799 280,799
571,708 1,755,138 2.326.906
573,598 573,598
708,529 708,529
367,909 367,900
5,011,641 5,011,641
10,874,275 703,739 2,463,667 367,909 14,409,550
15,325,134 1,694,526 2,466,230 443,829
Amounts reported for governmentat activities in the statement of
net position {A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not repotted in the funds. The cost
of the assets is 545,608,125 and the acoumulated depreciation )
is $12,367,360. 33,240,765
Postemployment Healthcare Benefits Other than Pension Obligatic;n {7,572,612)
Accrued liability for compensated absences (626,951}
Net position of governmental activities 39,451,392
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSEON
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Revenyes, Expenditures, and Changes in Fuad Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2613

Environmental Business Other Total
General Cenfer MAGNET Accelerator  Gover 1 Gover 1
Fund Fund Fund Fuad Funds Funds
REVENUES
Fees and Charges 1,359,58% 1,359,581
Baler ovedhead reimbursements 214,40% 2,143,880 2,358,281
Composting Revenues 300,000 300,000
Superstorm Sandy Revenue 338,462 338,462
Grant revenae 35,040 35,040
Property sales 7,380,000 7,388,000
Lease revenue 675,008 675,008
Mitigation Trust reimbursements 150,038 150,038
User Fees - NIMCEC 119,598 119,398
Other income 259,775 26,308 286,083
Rental income « Solar 174,144 174,144
Interest Income 73,509 1,350 6,804 1,211 82,884
Total revennes 10,924,918 2,291,146 6,804 - 36,251 13,259,118
EXPENDITURES
Commission operations 8,916,901 8,216,903
Envircamental center 649,135 849,135
MAGNET operations . 19,962 19,962
Capital expenditures 32,104 1,763,580 £,735,684
Anounts expended against prior year
revenue allocations 1,000 1,000
NIDOT Pulaski Skyway Expense 123,877 123,877
Solar Array 1-A Expenses 20,000 20,003
Other expenditures 358,349 2,61F 111,886 512,846
Total expanditures 9,491,251 2,356,326 19,962 - 111,886 11,979,403
Excess{deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 1,433,687 (65,180) (13,158) . (75,635} 1,279,714
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfers Out (64,628) (64,628)
Transfers In 64,628 64,628
Total other financing sources (uses) 64,628 - - {64.628) - -
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses 1,498,315 (65,180) {13,158) (64,628) (75,635) 1,279,714
Fund balance, beginning of year 9,375,860 768,919 2,476,825 64,628 443,544 13,125,876
Fund balance, end of year 10,874,275 703,739 2,463,667 . 367,909 14,409,590
Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds 1,279,714
Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of activities are difforent because:
Capital outlays, net of depreciation expense - (7,293,645)
Write-ofT of capital assets, net (25,050}
Expenses in the statement of activities that do not require curvent financial resources and
therefors are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds {52,741}
Pastemployment Healthcare Benefits Other than Pension Obdigation - {901,920y
Chanpe in net position of governmental activities (6,993,602)

The accompanying Notes o Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this stafement.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2013

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Receivables, net:
Accounts

Total current assets

Noncwrent assets:
Investinents
Restricted assets:
Cash management fund
Interest receivable
Investments
Capital assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

23

Solid Waste
Enterprise
Fund

3,083,088
3,779,078

930,729

7,792,895

12,266,586

3,062,659

6,024
2,272,891
1,234,110

18,842,270

26,635,165




NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2013

LIABILITIES

Current labilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences

Accrued liability for closure and post-closure costs
Total noncuzrent liabilities

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

Selid Waste
Enterprise
Fund

323,791
399,509
1,075,499
930,021

3,228,820

415,589
3,037,341

3,452,930

1,234,110
15,402,302
3,317,003

19,953,415

26,635,165

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. = -
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Revenaes, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprictary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Operating revenues:
Fees for services
Beneficial reuse materials

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses;
Balefill
Hudson/Union County Authorities
General operating
Equipment maintenance and garage
Parks and Open Space
MERI/Laboratory
Methane Monitoring Expense
Depreciation
Closure Expenses

Total Operating Expenses -
Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenues (losses):
Keegan landfill recreation escrow liabilities cancelled

Net change in fair value of investments
Investment income

Total nonoperating revenues (losses), net
Change in net position

Total net position, beginning of year

Total net position, end of year

Solid Waste
Enterprise

Fund

25,345,650
1,066,910

26,412,560

5,775,601
5,649,456
7,954,457
485277
792,307
2,249,194
96,433
547,383
1,500,058

25,050,666

1,361,894

85,485
(101,677)
307,464

291,272

1,653,166

18,300,249

19,953,415

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
{A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Solid Waste
Enterprise
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 24,344,943
Payments to employees (3,200,425)
Payments to suppliers (19,6992,553)
Beneficial reuse materials 1,066,910
Miscetlaneous {764.277)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 1,747,598
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Landfill remediation and post-closure {2,113,836)
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities (2,113,836)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES ]
Purchase of capital assets (175,577)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital financing activities (175,577}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest ' 325448
Proceeds from sales of investments 926,353
Net cash provided by {used for) investing activities 1,251,801
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 709,986
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of yeaz 2,373,102
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,083,088
Reconciliation of operating income {loss) to net eash provided
(used) by operating activities: .
Operating income (foss) 1,361,894
Depreciation expense 547,883
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net 137,679
Accouats payable {144,713)
Accrued liabitities (301,012)
Deferred revenue (244,481)
Due to/from other funds ] 390,348
Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities [,747,598

The accempanying Notes fo Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6,652,055
Accounts Receivable 2,344,178
Due from other funds 202,742
Total assets 9,198,975
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 408,132
Kingsland environmental remediation 1,875,809
Construction deposits 260,464
Rutherford post closure security 157,103
Security Deposit - SAJO (ESI) 126,077
Contract retainage 1,174,475
Due to other funds 355,943
Total liabilities 4,358,003
NET POSITION
Net position held in trust _ : 4,840,972
Total net position 4,840,972

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2013

ADDITIONS

Transportation Planning District Fees : 427,046
Other 106,400
Interest 8,690
Grant Revenues 2,344,178
Blackstrap Escrow 189,306
Total additions 3,075,620

DEDUCTIONS
Mitigation Expenses - 188,386
Transportation Planning District Fund Expenditures 3,538,868
3,727,254

Change in net position (651,634)

Net position, beginning of the year ‘ 5,492,606
Net position, end of the year 4,840,972

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission, formerly known as
Hackensack Meadowlands Development Commission conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental entities.

The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. Reporting Entity .

New Jersey Meadowlands Commission (the Commission), which is considered a
component unit of the State of New Jersey, was established in 1968. The Commission
operates with a board of commissioners and provides oversight of the solid waste removal,
environmental protection, and development in the Hackensack Meadowlands district.

The basic financial statements include all funds of the Commission over which the
Commission exercises oversight responsibility. The decision to include a potential
component unit in the Commission’s reporting entity is based on several criteria including
legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accountability. Based on the application of
these criteria, the Commission has no component units. Furthermore, the Commission is
includable in the State of New Jersey reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

B. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

Governmeni-wide Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information which
include the overall financial activities of the Commission. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between
the governmental and business-type activities of the Commission. Governmental activities
generally are financed through intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to

external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the Commission’s business-type activity and for cach function of the
Commission’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues.
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NOTE 1:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Commission’s funds. Separate
statements for each fund category applicable to the Commission -governmental and
proprictary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as fees for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as investment income, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary
activities.

The Commission reports the following major governmental funds:

. General fund. This is the general operating fund of the Commission. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in

another fund.

. New Jersey Meadowlands Commission Environmental Center fund. This fund
accounts for the proceeds of revenues generated by the Commission’s Environmental
Center.

. The New Jersey Meadowlands Commission Business Accelerator Fund includes the

revenues and expenditures associated with the operation of this facility.

The Commission reports the following major enterprise fund:

. Solid Wasté Enterprise fund. Thi§ fund accounts for ‘the activities of the. landfills
operated by the Commission, as well as the closure and post-closure costs of such
landfilis.

Fiduciary Fund

This fund accounts for the proceeds of deposits held in trust for others. Mitigation, tax
sharing and environmental activities are reported in this fund.
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NOTE 1:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
" (A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

The accounts of the Commission are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund
accounting to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available.
The principles of fund accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and
reporting purposes into funds or in accordance with activities or objectives specified for the
resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts,
An account group, on the other hand, is a financial reporting device designed to provide
accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because
they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are
classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

C. Basis of Accounting

Effective for the year ended December 31, 2001, the Commission adopted three
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - for State and Local Governments, No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus and
No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

As a result of its adoption, the financial statements herein present a section for
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and present a statement of cash flows using the
direct method as specified in GASB Statement No. 9.

Government-wide Statements

On January 1, 2012, the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission adopted the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of
Deferred Quiflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and net Position, which
amends the net asset reporting requirement of Statement No. 34, Basic Findncial
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows from
resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by
renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The classifications of net
position are defined as follows:
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NOTE 1:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Government-wide Statements, (continued)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net position
consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets, If there are any significant unspent related
debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent
proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets, net of
related debt. Rather that portion of the debt is included in the same net assets
component as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on
net assets used through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as
through debt convents), grantors, contributions, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net assets that do not

meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related
debt.

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilitics are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which
the Commission gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value
in exchange, include grants and other contributions. Revenue from such nonexchange
transactions is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
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NOTE 1:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
_ (A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available to pay liabilities of the current period. The Commission
recognizes revenues that are expected to be collected within 90 days of year end.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal
and interest of general long-term debt and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in government funds. Proceeds of long-term debt are reported as
other financing sources.

GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Funds, provides proprietary activities
with a choice of authoritative guidance after November 30, 1989. The Commission has
elected to follow GASB pronouncements exclusively after that date for all business-type
activities and enterprise funds. The following is a summary of other significant accounting
policies of the Commission.

D. Investments

Investments are stated in the financial statements at fair value based upon quoted market
prices.

E. Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay

The Commission employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the
event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation days up to the
actual days accrued. Reimbursement for accumulated sick leave is only made to
employees at retirement, based upon a formula contained in the Commission personnel
manual. Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary funds. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retiremenits.

-33.



NOTE 1:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSiON
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

F. Unearned Revenues

Revenues from the sale of solid waste disposal tickets are deferred until such time as the
tickets are turned in by haulers at the Commission landfill facility. In calendar year 2004,
the NJMC discontinued the use of the prepaid ticketing system and replaced it with a
prepaid hauler escrow account system.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed fixed assets are
recorded at their estimated fair market value at the time received. Depreciation is provided
using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from five to ten years for
all assets. There is no capitalized interest included in capital assets.

H. Accrued Liability for Closure and Post-closure Costs

The accrued liability for closure and post-closure costs represents funds collected as part of
the solid waste tariff, which are required to be established to pay for the cost of closure and
post-closure of landfills.

L. Payable from Restricted Assets - Landfill Closure

The payable from restricted assets - landfill closure, represents funds collected as part of
the solid waste surcharge, which is determined by the Department of Environmental
Protection, which are required to be established to pay for the cost of closure and post-
closure of landfills. These amounts are based upon engineering studies which are
evaluated on a yearly basis.

J. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. Cash and cash equivalents include cash in

banks and certificates of deposit with original maturities of less than three months from
date of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
" (A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

K. Fund Balances

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific
purposes stipulated by external resource providers (for example, grant providers),
constitutionally, or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a
new revenue source and restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed
or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the Commission’s highest level of
decision-making authority. Commitments may be changed or lified only by the
government taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally.

Assigned fund balance comprises amounts infended to be used by the Commission
for specific purposes. Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an
official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority. In
governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents
the amount that is not restricted or committed. This indicates that resources in other

governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that
fund.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and
includes all amounts not contained in the other classifications. Unassigned amounts
are technically available for any purpose. If another governmental fund has a fund
balance deficit, then it will be reported as a negative amount in the unassigned
classification in that fund. Positive unassigned amounts will be reported only in the
general fund.

1.. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposit
may not be returned to it. The year-end amount on deposit with banks was $45,992,935.
The Commission’s deposits at year-end were partially insured by Federal Depository
insurance in the amount of $500,000. The Commission’s primary depository has provided
to a third-party trustee collateral in the name of the Commission to cover the remaining
interest bearing account balance of the Commission.

The Commission’s investment policy permits the investing of funds in the following types
of investments:

(a)
(b)

©

(d)

Any direct and general obligation of the United States of America;

Any bond, debenture, note, or participation certificate issued by any of the following
Federal agencies: Bank for Cooperatives, Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal
Home Loan Bank Systems, Federal Land Banks, Export-Import Bank, Tennessee
Valley Authority, Federal National Mortgage Association, Government National
Mortgage Association, or Farmers Home Administration;

Negotiable or nonnegotiable certificates of deposit issued by any bank, savings and
loan association, or national banking association, if qualified to serve as a depository
for public funds under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act, N.JL.S.A. 17:9-41, et seq.;

Negotiable or nonnegotiable certificates of deposit issued by any bank, savings and
loan association, trust company, or national banking association having capital and
surplus of more than $25,000,000, and which certificates of deposit are continuously
secuted by direct obligations of the United States of America that shall have a market
value (exclusive of accrued interest) at all times at least equal to the principal amount
of such certificates of deposit and shall be lodged with the Commission or a
designated custodian;
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NOTE 2:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(continued)

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (continued)

(¢) Deposits in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund; and

(f)  Deposits in interest-bearing accounts in any bank, savings and loan association, trust

company, or national banking association, if qualified to serve as a depository for
public funds under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act,

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41, et seq., or if having capital and surplus of more than $25,000,000.

The Commission’s investments are summarized below as category 1 which include
investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the
Commission or its agent in the Commissions’s name.

The following is a summary of investments at December 31, 2013:

Categorized:
United States Agency Notes
United States Treasury Notes
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities
Money Market Funds:
United States Government

Noncategorized:

State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund -
pooled investments
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Fair Value

$301,278
1,614,189
252,957
19.442.960
21,611,384
3,107.984

$24.719.368
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013
(continued)

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Balance Balance
Dec. 31,2012 Additions Deletions Dec. 31, 2013
Governimental activities:
Capital assets that are not being depreciated:
Land $28,349,101 $ ($9,285,000) $19,064,101
Infrastructure 1,090,300 1,090,300
Construction in Progress 2,681,165 2,605,244 - 5.286.409
Total capital assets not being depreciated 32,120,566 2,605,244 (9.285.000) 25,440,810
Building and building improvements 16,437,468 16,437,468
Magchinery and eguipment 3,656,500 98,397 {25,050) 3,729,847
Totals at historical cost 20,093,968 98.397 (25.050) 20,167,315
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building, improvements and equipment (8,486,487) (552,362) . {9,038,849)
Machinery and equipment (3.168.627) (184.934) 25.050 (3.328.511)
Total accumulated depreciation (11.655,114) _(737.296} 25050 (12.367.360)
Total capital assets being depreciated,
net of accumulation depreciation 8,438.854 (638.899) 7.799.955
Government activities capital assets, net $40,559.420 $1.966.345 ($9.285,000) $33,240,765
Business-type activities:
Land and landfills 5,902,134 5,902,134
Total historical cost 5.902.134 5.902.134
Less accumulated amortization for:
Landfills (4,378.039) (508.03%) {4.886.072)
Total accumulated depreciation (4.378.039) (508.033) {4.886.072)
Total landfill life being amortized,
net of accumulated amortization 1,524,095 (508.033) 1,316,062
Building and building improvements 11,375,083 11,375,083
Machinery and equipment 2,418,707 175,577 (40,025) 2,554,259
Total historical cost 13,793.790 175,577 (40,025) 13,929,342
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building, improvements and equipment (11,375,083) (11,375,083}
Machinery and equipment - (2,296,361} (79.875) 40,025 (2,336.211)
Total accumulated depreciation (13.671.444) (79.875) 40,025 (13.711.294)
Total building, improvements and
Equipment assets being depreciated,
net of accumulated depreciation 122 346 95,702 218.048
Business-type activities capital assets, net $1,646.441 $412.331 5 $1.234,110

Depreciation for buildings and furniture, fixtures and equipment for the year was $737,296
allocated as foliows: Commission operations - $560,345 and Environmental Center - $176,951.
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NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Compronent Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

OPERATING LEASES

The Commission has commitments to lease certain buildings and office equipment under
operating leases that expire in 2031. Total operating lease payments made during the year
ended December 31, 2013 were $256,357. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending -
December 31 Amount
2014 $252,711
2015 219,808
2016 197,932
2017 197,932
2018 197,932
2019-2023 989,660
2024-2028 989,660
2029-2033 544,313
$3.589.948
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Substantially all of the Commission’s employees participate in the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) contributory defined benefit retirement system (retirement
system) which has been established by State statute and is sponsored and administered by
the State of New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of the system will be assumed by
the State of New Jersey should the system terminate. The Division issues a publicly
available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Public Employees Retirement System. This report may be obtained by
writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625.

The Public Employees’ Retirement System was established in January, 1955 under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to
substantially all full time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district
or public agency provided the employee is not required to be a member of another State-
administered retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting
occurs after 8-10 years of service and 25 years for health care coverage. Members are
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NOTE 5:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
{continued)

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, (continued)

eligible for retirement at age 60 with an annual benefit generally determined to be 1/55th of
the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years’ compensation for each
year of membership during years of creditable service. Early retirement is available to
those under age 60 with 25 or more years of credited service. Members are always fully
vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for
2% of related interest earned on contributions. In case of death before retirement,
members’ beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 amended the early retirement reduction formula for members hired
on or after July 1, 2007 and retiring with 25 years of service to be reduced by 1% for every
year between age 55 and 60, plus 3% for every year under age 55.

Chapter 89, P.L. 2008 increased the PERS eligibility age for unreduced benefits from age
60 to age 62 for members hired on or after November 1, 2008; increased the minimum
annual compensation required for membership cligibility for new members. Also, it
amended the early retirement reduction formula for members hired on or after November 1,
2008 and retiring with 25 years of service to be reduced by 1% for every year between age
55 and 62, plus 3% for every year under age 53.

Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, changed the membership eligibility criteria
for new members of PERS from the amount of compensation to the number of hours
worked weekly. Also, it returned the benefit multiplier for new members of PERS to 1/60
from 1/55, and it provided that new members of PERS have the retirement allowance
calculated using the average annual compensation for the last five years of service instead
of the last three years of service. New members of PERS will no longer receive pension
service credit from more than one employer. Pension service credit will be earned for the
highest paid position only. This law also closed the Prosecutors Part of the PERS to new
members and repealed the law for new members that provided a non-forfeitable right to
receive a pension based on the laws of the retirement system in place at the time 5 years of
pension service credit is attained. The law also requires the State to make its full pension
contribution, defined as 1/7th of the required amount, beginning in fiscal year 2012.
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NOTE 5:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
- (A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

-NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, (continued)

Chapter 3, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary
disability retirement for new members of PERS with disability insurance coverage similar
to that provided by the State to individuals enrolled in the State’s Defined Contribution
Retirement Program.

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, provides that new members of PERS hired on or after June 28, 2011
(Tier 5 members) will need 30 years of creditable service and age 65 for receipt of the early
retirement benefit without a reduction of % of 1% for each month that the member is under
age 65. Tier 5 members will be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Significant Legislation

On March 17, 2009, the legislative of the State of New Jersey enacted Public Laws 2009,
¢.19(8-21) the “Pension Deferral Program”. This law allows the Division of Pensions and
Benefits to provide non-state government pension system employers the option of paying
their full amount, or an amount that reflects a 50 percent reduction of the normal and
accrued liability component of the Public Employees® Retirement System and/or the Police
and Firemen’s Retirement System obligation for payment due to the State Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2009. The amount deferred will be repaid starting in April 2012 over a 15-
year period at 8% percent. The amount will fluctuate based on pension system investment
earnings on the deferred amount. The local employer is allowed to payoff the obligation at
any time prior to April 2012.

The Commission opted for this deferral in the amount of $258,746. As of December 31,
2013, the remaining balance is $234,863.

Contribution Reguirements

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and, in most retirement
systems, contributions are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan
member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation.
The pension funds provide for employee contributions based on 5.5% for PERS. This
amount will increase to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased in over 7 years beginning 2012,
of the employee’s annual compensation, as defined by law. Employers are required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate in all Funds except the SACT. The actuarially
determined employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments and
nonconiributory death benefits in the PERS and PFRS. In the PERS and PFRS, the
employer contribution includes funding for post-retirement medical premiums.

41-



NOTE 5:

NOTE 6:

NOTE 7:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, (continued)

The Commission’s contribution to the public employee’s retirement system, equal to the
required contributions for each year, were as follows: '

Year Ended
December 31 Amount
2013 $967,659
2012 1,016,343
2011 083,434

CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

The Commission has set aside funds for closure and post-closure for its landfills. In the
event the monies in the statutory accounts are not sufficient, the State of New Jersey will
address any future liabilities for closure and post-closure for its landfills. The assumption
of this liability by the State occurred in CY2003, when the Commission transferred $50
million from its closure and post-closure accounts to the State’s General Fund to meet its
statutory obligations under the New Jersey State 2003-2004 budget.

REMEDIATION OF KEEGAN LANDFILL

On June 14, 2005, the NJMC entered into a lease agreement with the Town of Kearny for
the remediation of Keegan Landfill through future reopening of the facility for construction
and demolition waste. It is expected that sufficient revenues will be generated through the
tipping fees at Keegan Landfill to reimburse the Commission for all costs associated with
this lease, At the completion of operations and closure of the Keegan Landfill, the NJMC
will assist the Town of Kearny with the construction of recreational facilities at the site.
The Commission has made payments to the Town of Kearny totaling $9,750,151 since the
agreement’s inception.
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NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

NOTE 10:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
‘(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

MEADOWLANDS AREA GRANTS FOR NATURAL AND ECONOMIC
TRANSFORMATION (MAGNET)

In calendar year 2005, the NJMC launched the MAGNET Program. The intention of the
MAGNET is to enhance the NJMC’s existing Municipal Aid Program (MAP), by ensuring
that monies are set aside for tax relief incentives for District municipalities. A detailed
budget outlining the amounts appropriated for MAP, environmental, economic
development and capital improvements initiatives is currently in place. As of
December 31, 2013, the balance in the MAGNET fund was $2,463,667. There were
commitments of $1,755,138 outstandingas of the end of the year.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLLANS
The Commission participates in two deferred compensation plans as follows:

(a) New Jersey State Employees Deferred Compensation Plan - This Plan is an IRC
Section 457 deferred compensation plan administered by the State of New Jersey
and, accordingly, is included in the financial statements of the State. The Plan,
available to all State employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency. The Plan is funded
solely from voluntary employee contributions. Employee contributions and
investment earnings thereon are a part of the State Plan, Employees may defer a
maximum 50% of their salary or $17,500, whichever is less. Investments are on an
individual participant basis and the total investment for all the Commission
employees is unknown.

(b) AIG Retirement - This 457(b) plan, which commenced operations on December 31,
1985, is funded solely from voluntary employee contributions. The Plan is
administered by AIG Retirement. All amounts of compensation deferred under the
Plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income
attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to
the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the participating
employees, and are not included the accompanying financial statements. Employee
contributions in 2013 were $75,084.

PROPRIETARY FUND - RESTRICTED ASSETS

Assets are restricted for closure and post-closure expenses in the Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund based upon management’s estimate.

43-



NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(continued)

NOTE 11: INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Balances due to/from other funds at December 31, 2013 consist of the following:

Dollar
Amount

$3,768,334

53,726
355,943
556,722
186,950

7,450
921,679
10,744
8.342

$5,869.890

Description
Due to the Solid Waste Fund from the General Fund.
Due to the General Fund from the Study Fund.
Due to the General Fund from the Transportation Planning District.
Due to the General Fund from the Environment Center.
Due to the Mitigation Trust Fund from the General Fund.
Due to the Mitigation Trust Fund from the Study Fund
Due to the Environment Center from the Solid Waste Fund.
Due to the Sblid Waste Fund from the Study Fund.
Due to the Mitigation Trust Fund from the Solid Waste Fund.

It is anticipated that all interfunds will be liquidated during the fiscal year.

NOTE 12: GOVERNMENT-WIDE NET ASSETS

Net assets are restricted in the General Fund as follows at December 31, 2013:

Maintenance $2,370,291
Additions and replacements 701,983
Open space acquisition 46,000
Renewable Energy 280,799
Insurance 25,000
Flood Control 1,724,618
Super Storm Sandy Repairs 142,175

$5.290.866
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

NOTE 13: LITIGATION

Meadowlands Golf Redevelopment Project. As previously reported in 2000, EnCap agreed
with the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission (NJMC) to remediate 785 acres within the
Hackensack Meadowlands District in Bergen County comprising four former landfills.
EnCap also agreed that upon completion of the remediation, it would develop 100 acres of
the remediated land, with the remainder of the site preserved as open space. Financing for
the project was secured by EnCap in the form of a loan of New Jersey Environmental
Infrastructure Trust (NJEIT) bond proceeds in the approximate amount of $107 million and
a loan of Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) monies from the State
Revolving Fund in the approximate amount of $104 million.

In 2007, EnCap defaulted under the agreement by failing to make required progress in the
remediation. EnCap also defaulted under its loan agreements with the NJEIT and NJDEP,
and ultimately defaulted under letters of credit issued by a bank syndicate led by Wachovia
Bank. After efforts to cure the defaults and save the project failed, EnCap filed a Chapter
11 Reorganization petition in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court. However, the bankruptey was
ultimately dismissed and NJMC has since terminated the redevelopment agreement with
EnCap and terminated EnCap's right, title and interest in the project site.

Immediately after dismissal of the bankruptcy, NIMC filed complaints in the Superior
Court, Bergen County, to effectuate a reversion of the property from EnCap (quiet title) to
the NJMC and to compel the surety to honor a $148 million performance bond secured by
EnCap, both as required under the agreement. Further, a foreclosure action previously filed
by the banks under a mortgage they received from EnCap on the property in exchange for
issuing the letters of credit was revived. The surety, American Home Assurance (AHA),
has since agreed to perform under the performance security and a Takeover Agreement has
since been executed allowing that to happen.

Virtually all related matters, involving these parties, including the banks' foreclosure action
and the NJMC quiet title action, were consolidated before Judge Contillo. The parties to
the matter were sent to mediation with former Chief Justice Zazzali. Through this process
NIMC and AHA were able to settle the claims of the Banks and PS&S, an EnCap
contractor.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

NOTE 13: LITIGATION, (continued)

Subsequent to mediation, AHA and NIMC filed joint motions for summary judgment
against the remaining parties to the litigation, including Mactec, a construction company
who did work for EnCap at the site and claimed damages of $30+ million. The motions
were granted in their entirety with Judge Contillo ruling that the properties reverted back to
NIMC in 2008 free and clean of any mortgages or construction liens. Mactec moved for a
stay of the decision which was granted.

After the issuance of the stay, Mactec reached a settlement with Lexington,an affiliate of
AHA, regarding an additional policy covering the site whereby Mactec agreed to drop all of
its claims in the Wachovia litigation including its appeal rights concerning the summary
judgment decision in exchange for $19.75 million out of that policy.

NIMC has filed a new action which is before Judge Contillo to declare invalid and
extinguish a putative' judgment lien which clouds the fee simple title to the above reference
real property that was vested in the NIMC nunc pro tunc to May 9, 2008 by virtue of a
March 31, 2011 Order ("Quiet Title Order™). This new putative judgment lien arises as a
result of an apparent September 20, 2010 Consent Order to Enter Judgment in the amount
of $3 million against EnCap Golf Holdings, LLC ("EnCap") ("Jersey Meadows Judgment")
entered in a matter last captioned Jersey Meadows, LLC v. EnCap Golf Holdings, LLC, et
al, Docket No. L:6113-08 ("Jersey Meadows Action"). This matter has been settled
between the parties and resulied in a $100,000.00 payment to Jersey Meadows, LLC.

All litigation involving the towns and tax liens, and any judgments have been resolved.

NIMC v. S. Rotondi & Sons. On March 20, 2013, NJIMC filed an action against S.
Rotondi & Sons (Rotondi) related to a vegetative waste transfer station lease. Each party
alleges a breach of the lease agreement. The total of lease payments over the 54 month
lease is $2,106,000.00. The parties’ allegations relate to what is and was due under the
lease. NIMC alleges approximately $1,000,000.00 is due under the lease. Rotondi alleges
that NJMC?’s breach also caused it economic damages in an amount {o be determined. This
matter continues in discovery.
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NOTE 14:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

LITIGATION, (continued)

Bowles Corporation Services. On November 29, 2006, NIMC entered into a contract for
security guard services (the “Contract”) with Bowles Security Services (“Bowles™). In June
2012, NIJMC received notice that the New Jersey Department of Labor (“Labor™) had
initiated an action against Bowles for failure to pay wages to security personnel under the
New Jersey Building Services Contracts Act (“BSCA™), N.J.5.A. 34:11-56.8 et seq.

Although Labor took action against Bowles, and not NJMC, there is the potential the
Bowles could sue NIMC to recover the outstanding amount alleged not to have been paid
to employees under the BSCA. The difference between the amount that is alleged to have
been due from the BSCA and what was paid is approximately $410,000. Bowles could
attempt to sue NJMC for any or all of this amount that is alleged to owe to its former
employees. The matter has been fully resolved between Bowles and NIMC by NIMC
paying $88,000 to Bowles for assumption of any and all future liability and defense from
any suits resulting in this matter. Bowles subsequently has settled all claims asserted
against it by Labor and those that could have been assert separately against Bowles and
NIMC by the employees.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and
PERS, respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who
retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or disability retirement. As of
June 30, 2012, there were 97,601 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The
cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L.
1994 Chapter 62. Funding of postretirement medical premiums changed from a
prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994 with an additional
contribution beginning in fiscal year 1996 to maintain a medical reserve that increases by
one half 1% of the active State payroll.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 Chapter 126, which
provides free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who
retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service. In fiscal year
2012, the State paid $146.6 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 15,709 eligible retired
members.
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NOTE 1e6:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
{continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT

Property and Liability Insurance

The Commission maintains commercial insurance coveragé for property, liability and
surety bonds that covers the risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damages to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor
have there been any settlements in excess of insurance coverage.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The Commission has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation
Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method.” Under this plan, the Commission is
required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The Commission is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. There were no reimbursements which were required
to be paid to the State for the current year.

POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The Commission sponsors a single employer postemployment benefits plan that provided
benefits in accordance with State statute, through the State’s Health Benefits Bureau to
eligible retirces, their spouses/domestic partners and eligible dependent children and
continues to be provided on behalf of the surviving spouse/domestic partner or a retiree.
Employees and/or their spouses/domestic partners become eligible for these benefits upon
25 years or more of service in the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) or those
approved for disability retirement.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 45 (“GASB 45"), Accounting and Financial Reporting by

Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the Commission obtained an
actuarially determined calculation for this obligation.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued) :

POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTIHCARE PLAN, (continued)

The Commission’s annual other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) costs for the Plan,
which is currently funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and is a non-contributory plan with all
plan payments for plan benefits being funded by the Commission, is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
on-going basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and interest on the net OPEB
obligation and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed 30 years. The Commission’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended
December 31, 2013, and the related information for the plan, are as follows:

January 1, 2013 - Net OPEB Obligation (Initial) (NOO) $6,670,092
Annual OPEB Costs (AOC) 1,529,600
Contribution from Commission (403,980)
December 31, 2013 - Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) - $7.795.712

The Commission’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the Plan and the net OPEB obligation for FY2013 were as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net
Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB
Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
(Dollars in Thousands)
2011 $1,370.8 22% $5,726,263
2012 1,305.9 28% 6,670,092
2013 1,529.6 26% ' 7,795,712
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NOTE 16:

NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN, (continued)

L D N A L A L I e i —

Unfunded
Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Liability
Value of accrued Unfunded asa
Assets Liability - Actuarial Percentage
Valuation OPEB Projected Accrued Funded Covered  of Covered
Date Cost Unit Credit Liability Ratio Payroil Payroll
(Dollars in Thousands)
01/01/07 $-0- $14,972.7 $149,727.7 0% $7,488.8 200%
01/01/10 -0- 14,427.6 14,427.6 0% 7,761.0 186%
01/01/13 -0~ 17,759.6 17,759.6 0% 7.192.1 - 247%

The Present Value of all Projected Benefits is the total present value of all expected
future benefits, based on certain actuarial assumptions. The Present Value of all projected
benefits is a measure of total liability or obligation. Essentially, the Present Value of all
projected benefits is the value (on the valuation date) of the benefits promised to current
and future retirees. The Plan’s present value of all projected benefits (at January 1,2013) is
$27,857,900 assuming no prefunding of obligations. The majority of this liability is for
current active employees (future retirees).

The Actuarial Acerued Liability is the liability or obligation for benefits eamed through
the valuation date, based on certain actuarial methods and assumptions. The Plan’s
Actuarial Accrued Liability (at January 1, 2013) is $17,759,600 assuming no prefunding of
obligations. The majority of this obligation is for active employees.

Normal Cost is the value of benefits expected to be earned during the current year, again
based on certain actuarial methods and assumptions. The 2013 Fiscal Year Normal Cost is
$815,700 assuming no prefunding of obligations. In pension accounting, this is also known
as “service cost.”

Future Normal Costs represent the present value of the remaining balance of all projected
benefits to be earned in future years.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

NOTE 16: POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN, (continued)

Assumptions

The results were calculated based upon plan provisions, as provided by the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission and the State of New Jersey, along with certain demographic
and economic assumptions as recommended by Aon, in conjunction with the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission with guidance from the GASB statement.

Demographic Assumptions

Data was provided by the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission as of January 1, 2013.
Demographic assumptions used to project the data are the same as those used to value the
SHBP PERS pension liabilities. There is no assumption for future new hires.

Economic Agssumptions

The GASB statement requires that the discount rate used to determine the retiree healthcare
liabilities should be estimated long-term yield on the “investments that are expected to be
used to finance the payments of benefits”. Since the New Jersey Meadowlands
Commission does not currently pre-fund the retiree healthcare liabilities, the discount rate
for the “no prefunding” scenario should be based on the portfolio of the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission’s “general assets” used to pay these benefits. The discount rate
assumption selected by the Commission is 4.50%. '

The trend assumption is used to project the growth of the expected claims over the lifetime
of the healthcare recipients. The GASB statement does not require a particular source for
information to determine healthcare trends, but it does recommend selecting a source that is
“publicly available, objective and unbiased”.

Aon developed the trend assumption utilizing the short-term rafes expected on the SHBP
plan along with information in published papers from other industry experts (actuaries,
health cconomists, etc.). For medical benefits, this amount initially is at 8.0% and
decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate for seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the
trend rate is 5.0%. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 8.0%, decreasing
to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after seven years. For Medicare Part B reimbursement, the
trend rate is 5.0%. This reflects the known underlying cost of the Part B premium.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
-__(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(continued)

NOTE 17: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Commission has evaluated subsequent events through March 28, 2014, the date which

the financial statements were available to be issued and no additional items were noted for
disclosure.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
ST (A Component Unit of the Stite of New Jersey)

Schedule of R , Expenditures, and Ck in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Budgetary Basis)

General Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjusiments Budget Actual Final to Actuat
REVENUES:
Property Sales 7,000,000 - 7,600,000 7,380,000 380,000
Fees and charges 1,100,000 . 1,100,000 1,359,581 259,581
Supersionn Sandy Revenue - 338,462 338,462
Solid Waste Overhead Rejmburserent 214,401 - 214,461 214,401 -
Composting Revenues 300,000 - 300,000 300,060 -
Lense Revenue - 675,008 675,008
Other Income 312,416 - 312,416 259,775 {52,641)
Rental Income - Solar Array 174,144 174,144
Mitigation Trust Reimbursement - 150,038 150,038
Interest Income , 75,000 - 75,000 73,549 (£,491)
Totat Revennes 5,001,817 - 9,001,817 10,924.918 1,923,101
EXPENDIFTURES:
Commission operations:
Salaries and wages 4,364,995 - 4,364,995 4.340,198 24,797
Supplies 247,850 - 247,850 274,852 (27,002)
Services 1,964,325 - 1,964,325 1,448,067 516,258
Maintenance and repairs 653,500 - 653,500 463,600 189,560
Other - . 49,8726 (49,826)
Fringe benefits 2,165,147 - 2,165,147 2,388,540 . (223,393)
EF5A - 2,771 (2,771)
Mew cquipment 6,000 - 6,000 890 5,110
Total cornmission operations 9,401,817 - $.401,817 8,968,744 433,073
Other Expenditures:
Capital expenditures 90,760 - 50,700 32,104 58,596
Other 225,000 225,000 225,000
NIDOT Pulaski Skyway Expense 123,877 (123,877)
Solar Array 1-A Expenses - 24,000 (20,000)
Other operations - 398349 {398,349)
Total other expenditures 315,70¢ - 315,700 574,330 {258.,630)
Total Expenditures 9,717,517 - 9,717,517 9,543,074 174,443
Excess of revennes over expenditures (715,700} - (715.700) 1,381,844 2,097,544
Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfer In 715,700 715,700
Operating Transfer In - Business Accelerator Fund 64,628 (64,628)
Total other financing sousces 715,700 - 715,700 64,628 (64,628)
Excess of rev and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses - - - 1,446,472 2,162,172
Fund balance, beginning of year 9,375,960
Net change i fund balance 10,822,432
Fund bafance, end of year budgetary basis 10,822,432
Mopcurrent liabikity for compensated absences 51,843
Fund balance, end of year governmental funds basis 10,874,275
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION

(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditares, and Changes in

REVENUES:
Fees and charges
Other Income
User Fees - NIMCEC
Reserve Utilization
Interest Income

Total Revenues
EXPENIITURES:
Comunission operations:
Salaries and wages
Supplies
Services
Maintenance and repairs
Fringe benefits
New equipment
Total commission operations
Other Expenditures:
Ramapo College Partnership
Amounts expended against prior year

revenne allocations
Other

Total other expenditures
Total Expendinires
Net change in fand balances
Fund balance, beginning of year
Net change in fund batance
Less amounts appropriated for current year
Fund balance, end of year budgetary basis
Noncurrent liability for compensated absences

Fund balance, end of year governmental funds basis

Fund Balance - Budget and Acfual
(Budgetary Basis)
Envirenmental Center Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actuat
2,148,880 - 2,148,880 2,143,880 (5,060)
5,800 - 5,800 26,308 20,508
117,700 - - 137,700 119,598 1,898
9,000 - 9,000 (9,000)
2,500 - 2,500 1,360 (1,140}
2,283,880 - 2,283,880 2,291,146 7,266
- 40,509 (40,509)
110,250 . 110,250 133,300 (23,050)
263,550 - 263,550 346,726 (83,176)
195,000 - 195,000 108,418 86,582
- 21,080 (21,080}
2,500 - 2,500 2,500
571,300 - 571,300 650,033 (78,739
1,703,580 - 1,703,580 1,703,580 -
- 1,600 (1,000}
9,000 - 9,000 2611 6,389
1,712,580 - 1,712,580 1,707,191 5,389
2,283,880 - 2,283,880 2,357,224 (73,344}
- - - (66,078) (66,078)
768,919
702,841
702,841
898
703,139
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
(Budgetary Basis)

Business Accelerator Fund
Year Exded December 31, 2013

Budget
Original Transfers/ Final
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual

Variance
Final to Actual

REVENUES:
Lease Revenues
Interest Tncome -

Total Revenues - - . .

EXPENDITURES:
Commission operations:
Salaries and wages -
Supplies -
Services -
Maintenance and repairs -
Fringe benefits -
Other -

Total commission operations - - - -

Total Expenditures - - - -

Excess of revenues over expenditures - - - -

Other Financing Uses:
Operating Transfer OQut - General Fund (64,628)

64,628

Total other financing sources - - - (64,628)

64,628

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financing uses - - - (64,628)

Fund balance, beginning of year ’ 64,628

Net change in fund balance (64,628)

Fund balance, end of year budgetary basis -

Noncurrent Hability for compensated absences

Fund balance, end of year governmental funds basis -
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balances and
Project Status-Budgetary Basis
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Revenues and Other Financing Soarces
Interest Income

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Other Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

Capital Projects Fund
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651 1,847

651 1,847
460,000

460,000
651 (458,153)
239,228 697381
239,879 239,228
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jerscy)

NOTE TO SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Budgetary Procedures and Budgetary Accounting

The Commission’s General Fund budget is established by its Board of Commissioners. In addition, a
budget has been approved for the Environmental Cetnter Fund by the Board of Commissioners. The
Commission prepares its budgets on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America except for recognizing the appropriation of prior year fund balance as
revenue and recognition of long-term liabilities for compensated absences and changes thereto.
Appropriations unexpended at the close of the fiscal year may be carried forward to subsequent years.
Expenditures cannot exceed appropriations at the total fund level for the General Fund and
Environmenta! Center Fund, exclusive of amounts expended against prior year revenue allocations.
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NJMC PROPERTY ACQUISITION
TOTAL ACREAGE BY MUNICIPALITY

{source: MERI - GIS)
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Total Land Acreage: 3,582 acres

(as of 12/31/2013)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Commissioners ,
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission:

~ We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United. States of
America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission (the Commission) (A Component Unit of the State of New
Jersey) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the New Jersey Meadowland’s basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated March 28, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statemenis, we considered the New lJersey
Meadowlands Commission’s internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. '

FWCC
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The Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission:.
Page 2.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. .

We did identify one immaterial deficiency in internal control that we have reported to management of
the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission in the accompany other comments and recommendations
section of this report.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s
financial staternents are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

However, we noted one immaterial instance of noncompliance that we have reported to the management
of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission in the accompanying other comments and
recornmendations section of this report,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this teport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the New
Jersey Meadowlands Commission internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in.considering the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission internal controls and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose. '
Stev;n ;g :é ie;kotz, CP.A.

Registered Municipal Accountant
No. CR00413

Fand: SO Gl Con 4

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

March 28, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED BY
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND N.J. OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

The Board of Commissioners
New Jersey Meadowlands Commission:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission (the Commission) (A Component Unit of
the State of New Jersey) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey
State Office of Management and Budget's State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s major federal and state programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Respensibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the New Jersey Meadowlands
Commission’s major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Goverament Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
OMB Circular A-133, "dudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations"; and the
provisions of the New Jersey State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients
of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
and N.J. OMB Circular 04-04 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
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The Board of Commissioners
- New Jersey Meadowlands Commission: - — -
Page 2. -

about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. ’

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a fegal determination on the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

Tn our opinion, the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal and state programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. ‘

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the New Jersey
Meadowlands Commission’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program to determine our auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance with OMB Circular A-133 and N.J. OMB Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
cxpress an opinion on the effectiveness of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission’s internal confrol
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal and state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is
a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
and state program will not be prevented, or detected. and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

FWCC
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Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal conftrol over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133 and N.J. OMB Circular 04-04. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any

other purpose.
0

Sieven D. Wielkotz, C.P.A.
Registered Municipal Accountant
No. CR00413

i U ol Cus, P

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULL() & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

March 28, 2014
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards present the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs of the New Jersey Meadowlands Commission. The Commission is defined in Note
1A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Reporting Entity, of the Commission’s financial
statements. All federal financial assistance received directly from federal financial assistance passed
through other government agencies is included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards.

NOTE 2. RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the Commission’s
financial statements.
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION

. (A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:
Internal qontrol over financial reporting:

1. Significant deficiencies identiﬁe.d that are

not considered to be material weaknesses?

2. Material weakness(es) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awal;ds Section

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and
type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
Type of auditors’ report on compliance for major programs:
Internal Control over compliance:
1. Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?
2. Material weakness(es) identified?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, as amended?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number

20.933

State Awards Section

Not Applicable
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unmodified

yes

yes

yes

$_300.000

yes

unmodified

yes

yes

yes

Name of Federal Program

MASSTR Grant

none
reported

o

no

X none

reported

X no




NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(continued)

Section IT - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
related to the general-purpose financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with
Chapter 5.18 of “General Auditing Standards”. ‘

NONE
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NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(continued)

Section IIT - Federal Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the reportable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance
including questioned costs, related to the audit of federal programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133,
as amended. - ‘

NONE

74



NEW JERSEY MEADOWLANDS COMMISSION
(A Component Unit of the State of New Jersey)

OTHER COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
OTHER COMMENTS

Requests for grant reimbursements are not being filed in a timely manner which may create a shortage of
funds available for the program.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That requests be submitted as soon as all required documentation is available.

Acknowledgment

We received the complete cooperation of all of the officials of the Commission and we greatly
appreciate the courtesies extended to all members of the audit team.

Respectfully submitted,

e,

Steven D. Wielkotz
Registered Municipal Accountant
No. CR00413

Feak:, JO, (ol Gy “,

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

March 28, 2014
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